## **DRAFT MINUTES**

| Meeting ID | 7597   |
|------------|--|
| Committee  | Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education (SACRE)  |
| Date       | 13/06/2019   |
| Attendees  | Councillor Laura Lacey (Chair)   |
|            | Councillor Ibrahim Hayat (Committee Member)  |
|            | Councillor Rehmaan Hayat (Committee Member)  |
|            | Councillor Tracey Holyoake (Committee Member)  |
|            | Councillor Joan Watkins (Committee Member)   |
|            | Neeta Baicher (Church Representative)  |
|            | Subina Begum (Church Representative)   |
|            | Abraham Davidson (Church Representative)   |
|            | Gifty David (Church Representative)  |
|            | Susie Hunt (Church Representative)   |
|            | Patricia Landers (Church Representative)   |
|            | Soam Sharma (Church Representative)  |
|            | Huw Stephens (Church Representative)   |
|            | Joanne Crawley (Teacher Representative)  |
|            | Kirsten Hicks (Teacher Representative)   |
|            | Nicola Huggleston (Teacher Representative)   |
|            | Rebecca Penn (Teacher Representative)  |
|            | Lana Picton (Teacher Representative)   |
|            | Helen Vaughan (Teacher Representative)   |
|            | Reverend Catrin Roberts (Church Representative)  |
|            | Emma Keen (Officer)  |
|            | Nerys Wherry (Officer)   |
|            | Paula Webber (Public)  |
|            | Clare James (Public)   |
|            | Neil Barnett (DS Officer)  Standing Advisory Council for Policious Education Distribution (Notify) |
|            | Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education Distribution (Notify)                            |

| Item ID    | 6690   |
|------------|--|
| Item Title | 9.30am observation of an act of Collective Worship at Malpas Church Primary School (foundation phase)  |
| Summary    | Miss Thomas introduced the advisory council to the children, which was followed by hymns being sung. The Reverend discussed Pentecost which was to be celebrated on the following Sunday,. The theme for collective worship was the importance of helping others and perseverance. A short video was played about a squirrel with an impossible mission with a nut. The clip showed the squirrel not completing the task the first time, but completing on the second time. The Reverend told the children that due to the squirrel's perseverance it was able to complete the task. |

The Reverend invited a number of pupils to give further examples of perseverance with short challenges against teaching staff, which included hula-hooping for 10 seconds, walking whilst balancing a book on the head and throwing a beanbag through a hoop. The last challenging was remembering nursery rhymes.

The Reverend then again told the children of the importance of helping others and helping when life gets difficult. Thought about times when times were tough, and how it felt when someone helped you. How can we be a helping hand today? The children then gave examples.

The Chair of the Committee thanked Jo Crawley for organising the assembly.

| Item ID    | 6685   |
|------------|--|
| Item Title | Time of Quiet Reflection   |
| Summary    |  |
|            | The Chair welcomed the Committee to the meeting. Members then took part in a period of quiet reflection. |

| Item ID    | 6688                     |
|------------|--------------------------|
| Item Title | Declarations of Interest |
| Summary    | None.                    |
|            |                          |

| Item ID    | 6686   |
|------------|--|
| Item Title | Apologies for Absence  |
| Summary    |  |
|            | Paddy Landers, Clare James, Nikki Huggleston, Paula Webber, Catrin |
|            | Roberts and Cllr J Watkins   |
|            |  |

| Item ID    | 6687  |
|------------|---|
| Item Title | To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 7th March 2019 and to consider matters arising.           |
| Summary    | The minutes of the meeting on 7th March were accepted as a true record with the following amendments:   |
|            | Page 5 paragraph 5, HT should be HS. Paragraph 6. Rebecca Penn confirmed as attending the meeting.      |
|            | Agreed The minutes of the meeting on 7th March were accepted. Nominations, no one received for WASACRE. |

| Item ID    | 6689                           |
|------------|--------------------------------|
| Item Title | To receive a membership update |

Summary

It was advised that there had been no new membership developments. The SACRE clerk advised that Paula Webber would write to the Salvation Army to enquire about a representative joining the committee.

|            | I  |
|------------|--|
|            |  |
| Item ID    | 6691   |
| Item Title | Curriculum development update: Welsh Government Consultation on the draft Curriculum for Wales 2022, the Humanities AoLE and the supporting framework for religious education  |
| Summary    | James Kent - Assistant Director: Professional Learning (Curriculum, Collaboration & Research) for EAS introduced himself to the committee. He advised that Paula Webber had wrote a report around how the RE framework was progressing. SACRE were informed that Welsh Government were holding a consultation on the draft Curriculum for Wales 2022. This would provide feedback from SACREs and any concerns or issues for the Curriculum working groups to consider. This needed to be done by 19th July deadline. For this phase, all information fed back from various groups would be built into next phase of development.  |
|            | The Chair advised that the committee had just seen the RE aspect, which was brought to the committee by Paula. The Chair then advised that there would be a cross party meeting to be held in the Civic Centre, Newport on 9th July 2019 at 10am, which hoped to get as many teacher representatives to attend as possible to give their views and comments. The working party would discuss a response from the SACREs in the region to the draft Humanities Curriculum.  |
|            | JK advised the committee that slides will be forwarded to the committee afterwards. He advised that Everything is changing and will affect qualifications in 2025. 14-16 yr olds and 3-16 year olds should not have awkward transition phases. JK also informed SACRE that Curriculum reform was one aspect of many changes to the education system. An Important point is that the curriculum will stay the same for a year. The curriculum is not a content driven curriculum but a process curriculum with long term goals which are the Four Purposes of Successful Futures which was the report written by Professor Graham Donaldson. This is different from the current curriculum which has a focus on these Four Purposes rather than starting with assessment and working backwards.   |
|            | This curriculum has been in draft since 30th April, the final curriculum will be available in January 2020. It was advised that it won't be final – as the curriculum evolves the framework is flexible enough to change for refinement. There is no statutory requirement for schools to engage in 2020. In the past schools were wanted to engage to trial out new aspects in curriculum. Estyn will be out in schools to see how it is working. This will be a different curriculum which will be split up into components.  There are 6 Areas of Learning and Experience (AoLEs) in the curriculum which define what we think young people should learn, and should talk to the Four Purposes. There is a learning progression in the framework which sets out how the learner progresses in different AoLEs.  There are links between AoLEs and the curriculum outlines experience for knowledge and skills in those areas Cross Curricular Responsibilities and Wider Skills are built in where they are most appropriate in learning areas. Humanities had grown as an area of learning as Business and Social Studies have also been added. Religious Education remains statutory. Learning has become |
|            | broader, and it is important for young people people to learn in Humanities – this   |

should talk to the 4 Purposes and the big ideas in disciplines, which should be

basis of progression. Learning will become more relevant and authentic to young people. Humanities has taken more holistic approach. This has Presented challenges. JK chaired the group and this was challenging. The draft curriculum allows for young people to have greater specialisation which allows for pathways to qualifications.

Qualifications Wales are a part of AoLE groups. All stakeholders in Wales have an opportunity to participate in the consultation. Part of the process was to talk to Headteachers and secondary senior leaders for what they could do with qualifications, and flexibility. There will still be qualifications for 14-16 year olds but they may look different.

HS queried if the Higher Education sector had given opinions on this, as Welsh pupils could be put at a disadvantage if those who wish to go to university wish to have experience in this subject. JK advised that there won't be any decisions taken that compromises the life decisions of pupils. Example was then given of his daughter undertook a Foundation Arts course, where she experienced different things and specialise in illustration. Pupils could look at general Humanities, then specialise in a subject.

JK advised there are no changes at present for A Levels, they will still exist. Universities will take into account Welsh BACC, as they acknowledge it as a subject.

HS then commented that some skills and experience in Welsh BACC comes through the curriculum. Is there a move to do away with Welsh BACC? JK advised that two things that Prof. Donaldson liked and highlighted were learning through experience and Welsh BACC. When done properly, and given currency, it is a superb qualification. Qualifications Wales are reforming the Welsh BACC and will become more streamlined and focussed, so there is no policy to remove. EK asked if Teacher training is also changing? JK advised that everything is changing, schools will have a larger role in curriculum development. The challenge is in transition. In 2022 the new curriculum becomes statutory guidance. Schools will have more flexibility in how they develop their curriculum.

It was also advised that there are some significant changes in the way things are structured. There a lots of triggers for in RE curriculum in what young people will study. There is a rationale to support the What Matters and their i development. The group looked at knowledge, experience and skills learners should seek. A feature of the curriculum is that it is interconnected and can overlap. JK advised that there is a real opportunity for cross phase planning depending on resources. Comment was made that there could be concerns from people that there won't be enough specific content or whether enough specification on what young people want to study, Assessment in schools are often currently used for accountability purposes which give numbers rather than for performance purposes. We need to ensure that teaching staff have those skills, and have less drive for data. JK then advised that the biggest change is for a change of culture and behaviour across the system. Greater flexibility equals greater risk. Focus is needed for moderation and

outcomes. RP spoke of the importance of developing cross curriculum responsibilities. They have to underpin the core purposes. Whatever job students choose are going to need Literature, Numerical and Digital components. Feedback on the draft curriculum can be given as a group or individual, on issues such as important elements that are not in the framework. However Welsh Government won't consider any amendments on the model or elements. The team had spoken to a great range of people, significant numbers of doctors and professionals that can provide insight to challenge the process.

HS commented that Schools follow agreed syllabus. This was established many years ago, rolled over due to change. How does that sit with this? JK advised that they are looking for SACRE's to adopt the RE Framework as the agreed syllabus. NB e about the changes after the consultations are over and that teachers will have lots of changes to manage. Are resources and training going to be given to support teachers? JK replied that Kevin Palmer from Welsh Government has committed resources specifically around RE. What he will need will be guided by SACRE's. There will be £500 per teacher to support the implementation of the Curriculum. More is needed but there is this commitment. It was then advised that a discussion point from the last meeting was that we need to meet the integrity of RE, it is crucial to have definite specifics, and Welsh Government recognise this. This focus will be kept but it needs to be ensured that SACRE's monitor provision.

NB commented that when teaching different studies plus RE, it couldn't be expected for the same teacher to teach all topics. Will RE get diluted or keep the same status? RE will need to be taught by properly trained teachers. RP added that with relevant training, teaching of RE could be greater enhanced and could be made more fascinating and relevant. JK agreed there RE will need specialists. Cross curriculum teaching is important.

EK enquired would teaching be different between England and Wales. Comment was made about the Great Fire of London, this would be of no relevance to Wales other than being a historical event, but pupils in Newport could learn about the Chartists.

The Chair then thanked JK for the presentation and attending.

## Agreed

Neil to send invite to July 9th meeting to all members.

| Item ID    | 6692   |
|------------|--|
| Item Title | Monitoring of Religious Education and Collective Worship: Estyn Inspection |
|            | Reports  |
| Summary    | The Chair advised the committee that there are no inspection reports to    |
|            | discuss.   |
|            |  |

| Item ID    | 6693  |
|------------|---|
| Item Title | Effectiveness of SACRE (to include a verbal update on the OLF Wales Interfaith Conference)  |
| Summary    | The Chair advised that she had attended the Onyx Link Foundation (OLF) Wales Interfaith Conference that was held on 1st May 2019. Onyx explained how they and the chair want tiowork with schools. Neeta and chair had worked with Onyx f. Onyx sent regular interfaith and education information to f teachers. Would Newport SACRE be happy to support? OLF offer to come into schools and bring faith leaders together and show how interfaith organisations are working together. They advised that it could be a good idea to open up to question and answer session. Higher Education pupils could get involved in advanced discussions with interfaith members. The Chair advised the Committee that St Woolos will also be running an Interfaith week. The Conference was also attended by a Rabbi, a Wiccan Priestess. They discussed the importance of why we should work in cohesion. If the Committee are happy to support, then SACRE could write to schools on behalf |

of Onyx.

NB advised that schools could be given dates as they need to fit with school timetable. SACRE would facilitate the initial visit.

It was suggested that St Woolos could be a starting point as it is a multi-faith school. The value is huge. EK could make other Headteachers aware at management meetings.

NB advised that Bassaleg schools had presented short RE days in which SACRE has contributed. It should be a collective agenda so schools could work together. The cathedral would be a good place to start as local people would be able to access it and service the community for multi-faith access. The Chair then advised it was important to bring this to primary school age so they can go into secondary school with correct information. The Chair then told the Committee if they are interested in attending the 9th July event to left OLF know.

## Agreed

The Committee accepted the update and advised that they are happy to support.

| Item ID    | 6694   |
|------------|--|
| Item Title | WASACRE  |
| Summary    | a) To receive and note draft minutes from WASACRE meeting held 26th March 2019 (attached) The Committee received and noted the draft minutes.  |
|            | b) To consider nominations for the WASACRE Executive Committee The Committee briefly discussed the nominations for the WASACRE Executive Committee. Newport SACRE agreed to support Rachel Samuel as Vice Chair. Members |
|            | agreed to vote for Andrew Jones, Matthew Maidment and the job share position of Marged Williams and Lucy Grant.  |
|            | c) To note dates of future WASACRE meetings i. Friday 28th June 2019 – Colwyn Bay, Conwy   |

| Item ID    | 6695                  |
|------------|-----------------------|
| Item Title | Correspondence update |
| Summary    |                       |
|            |                       |
|            | No correspondence.    |
|            |                       |

| Item ID    | 6696   |
|------------|--|
| Item Title | SACRE News Bulletin - To consider information briefings from members for   |
|            | inclusion in next SACRE News Bulletin  |
| Summary    | The Committee discussed the contents of the SACRE news bulletin. It was suggested that it would be a good to put Onyx details in the bulletin. |

**Agreed**The Committee accepted the information in the briefing. It was agreed that HS will attend WASACRE Conwy meeting.

| Item ID    | 6697  |
|------------|---|
| Item Title | To note dates and venue of future meetings  |
| Summary    | The SACRE clerk advised the Committee that the next meeting would take place on 17th October 2019 at 10am in Committee Room 4, Civic Centre.  The Spring meeting would take place on 5th March 2020 at 10am, with the venue awaiting to be confirmed. |
|            | The meeting ended at 10:15am.   |